
 

 

 
 

 

Notice of The Charter Trustees of Poole 
 

Date: Wednesday, 26 August 2020 at 5.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual Meeting 

 

Membership: 

Mayor: 
Cllr M Le Poidevin 

Deputy Mayor: 
Cllr B Dion 

Sheriff: 
Cllr J Bagwell 

Cllr M Andrews 
Cllr S Baron 
Cllr J Beesley 
Cllr P Broadhead 
Cllr M F Brooke 
Cllr D Brown 
Cllr R Burton 
Cllr D Butler 
Cllr D Butt 
Cllr J J Butt 
Cllr M Earl 
 

Cllr L-J Evans 
Cllr N Greene 
Cllr A Hadley 
Cllr M Haines 
Cllr M Howell 
Cllr M Iyengar 
Cllr T Johnson 
Cllr R Maidment 
Cllr C Matthews 
Cllr D Mellor 
Cllr P Miles 
 

Cllr S Moore 
Cllr T O'Neill 
Cllr K Rampton 
Cllr Dr F Rice 
Cllr M Robson 
Cllr V Slade 
Cllr A M Stribley 
Cllr T Trent 
Cllr M White 
 

 

All Members of The Charter Trustees of Poole are summoned to attend this meeting to 
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 
 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4573 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Democratic Services by email at democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

HONORARY CLERK TO THE CHARTER TRUSTEES 
 

 

18 August 2020 
 



 
 

 

anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Charter Trustees. 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 Charter Trustees are requested to declare any interests on items included 
in this agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for 
guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Confirmation of minutes and matters arising 5 - 14 

 To receive the minutes of the meetings held on 29 January and 22 July 
2020 and to consider any matters arising 
 

 

4.   Charter Mayor's Report  

 The Charter Mayor will report on her recent activities. 
 

 

5.   Charter Trustees 2019-20 Internal Audit Report 15 - 26 

 To consider and approve the outcome of the internal audit report and the 
management responses to the recommendations. 
 

 

6.   Development of Risk Register 27 - 28 

 The Charter Trustees are asked to consider and comment on the draft risk 
register. 
 

 

7.   Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 29 - 36 

 The Charter Trustees are asked to consider and approve the Annual 
Governance Statement 2019/20. 

Please note that the paper attached for this item also relates to item 8 
below. 
 

 

8.   Statement of Accounts for 2019/20  

 The Charter Trustees are asked to approve the statement of accounts for 
2019/20. 
 
 

 

9.   Charter Trustees - VAT Position  

 The Responsible Financial Officer will update the Charter Trustees on the 
VAT position. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 January 2020 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr M Le Poidevin – Mayor 

Cllr B Dion – Deputy Mayor 

 
Present: Cllr M Andrews, Cllr S Baron, Cllr M F Brooke, Cllr D Brown, 

Cllr R Burton, Cllr D Butler, Cllr D Butt, Cllr M Earl, Cllr L-J Evans, 
Cllr C Matthews, Cllr S Moore, Cllr T O'Neill, Cllr P Parrish, 
Cllr K Rampton, Cllr Dr F Rice, Cllr V Slade, Cllr A M Stribley, 
Cllr T Trent and Cllr M White 

  

15. Apologies  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors J Bagwell, J Beesley, J Butt, N 
Greene, M Haines, M Howell, M Iyengar and P Miles.  
 
Apologies were also received from Graham Farrant. 
 

16. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion. 
 

17. Confirmation of minutes and matters arising  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2019 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed subject to clause 12 Charter Mayor’s Report 
(bottom page 1 top of page 2) reading as follows: 

The Trustees were advised of key events including the annual visit by the 
Chernobyl Children to Poole.  The Mayor reported that being away from the 
contaminated area for 4 weeks adds up to 5 years to their life. 
 

18. Charter Mayor's Report  
 
The Charter Mayor updated the Trustees on her activity since the last 
Charter Trustees meeting on 9 October 2019.  She explained that over the 
Christmas and New year period there had been no events.  She reported 
on the type of events she attended including openings and launches such 
as a care home in Oakdale, a tree hotel, unveiling a defibrillator and the 
community fridge in Branksome Library, Shows including Hairspray and 
Christmas concerts, meeting Santa at the Quay and many Christmas 
events. She highlighted the events involving Children and Young people 
including an event dealing with the rights of children.   

The Charter Mayor referred to the regalia talks undertaken by the Civic 
Team and that lots of people were not aware of the mayoral artefacts.  She 
explained that the talks provided an opportunity for people to learn about 
the civic heritage of the Town.  She thanked Gary Richards and Mike 

5

Agenda Item 3



– 2 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
29 January 2020 

 
Weetman, from the Civic Team on the commentary they provided for the 
talks.  

The Charter Mayor referred to the recent Holocaust Memorial Day event 
that she had attended.  She touched on how much the town relies on 
volunteers which encouraged her to arrange her civic service to celebrate 
the community and provided an opportunity to thank the volunteers for their 
work. 

RESOLVED that the Charter Mayor’s report be received and noted.   
 

19. Budget and Precept 2020/21  
 
The Charter Trustees considered a report on the proposed budget and 
precept for 2020/21, which had been circulated to each Trustee and a copy 
of which appears as Appendix ‘A’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Charter Trustees were advised that they were required to set the 
budget for 2020/21 and any subsequent precept for submission to BCP 
Council by 31 January 2020.   

The Charter Trustees were referred to paragraph 2 of the report and the 
appendix attached to the report which set out the base budget for 2019/20 
agreed at the last meeting on 9 October 2019, the proposed budget for 
2020/21 and the projected outturn for 2019/20.  Officers in presenting the 
report referred to some key issues following a meeting with the Mayor and 
budget signatories detailed below:  

  Until the 2019/20 budget was agreed in October 2019 expenditure 
was minimal which has had an impact on the projected outturn for 
2019/20. 

  Hospitality budget – the outturn figure shows a variance to the base 

budget.  Historically Poole Mayoralty has not had a separate 

hospitality budget.  It was proposed that the budget was maintained 

at the base budget level to enable Charter Trustees to review and 

monitor the hospitality requirements of the Mayor as the wishes of 

the Mayor on the level of hospitality they wish to undertake each 

year will vary.   

  Civic Regalia – this budget funds the purchase of the past 

mayors/escort badges including maintenance and repair of the civic 

regalia, robes and hats.  

  Training and Conferences – this included the attendance by the 

Sheriff at the Annual AGM of the Association of City and Town 

Sheriffs of England and Wales (NACTSEW) which was a 3-day 

event which can be held in any one of the 15 City or Towns with a 

Sheriff.  

  Flowers – purchased for 100th birthdays and milestone 

anniversaries etc.  Charter Trustees were advised that it was difficult 

to know exact numbers for any Mayoral year as the civic team was 

advised on an ad hoc basis of such events.    

  Mayor Making – the shadow Charter Trustees on 30 April 2019 had 

agreed that the first Annual General Meeting of the Charter Trustees 

6



– 3 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
29 January 2020 

 
be held on 7 June 2019 at 11 am and would be followed by a buffet 

lunch in the Cattistock Room.  The Hospitality arrangements for the 

Mayor-Making event may vary according to the wishes of the Mayor 

which may impact on the available budget.  The reasons for the 

projected outturn for 2019/20 was due in part to the cost of the 

buffet which was £7.50 per head. 

  Remembrance Day – proposed to maintain at base budget level to 

accommodate the cost implications of any increase in potential 

security threats and the improved PA system. 

  Clothing and Uniforms – cost of replacing maintaining and dry-

cleaning uniforms for the civic team. 

  Vehicle Hire – the Charter Trustees have a civic party of 4 therefore 

when all are attending the same event a large vehicle was required 

and hired on a case by case basis. 

Officers explained that subject to discussions on the above the Charter 

Trustees would need to agree the final budget and the precept. 

Charter Trustees were also referred to paragraph 5 and 6 of the report on 
the VAT position and informed that a response was currently awaited from 
the HMRC. 

The Charter Trustees discussed the detail of the proposed budget for 

2020/21 which included raising the following issues: 

 was there any annual allowance for the civic roles – officers 

confirmed that there were no annual allowances in the budget.  

However, there was provision for out of pocket expenses. The 

Honorary Clerk’s representative explained that there had been no 

increase in the base budget. 

 how would the underspend be dealt with - officers reported that any 

underspend would be included in reserves for the following year. 

 the maintenance and cleaning of civic robes – officers explained that 

the Civic Regalia budget head included the maintenance of robes.  

 accommodation costs – Charter Trustees were advised that this was 

the recharge from BCP Council for the use of accommodation at the 

Poole Civic Centre. 

 whilst emphasising the need to be cost effective and efficient the 

proposed budget compared to the projected outturn position for 

some budget heads was excessive.  Officers referred to the potential 

VAT liability and that the reserve could be kept for this purpose 

pending the outcome of the advice from the HMRC.  The precept 

would be reviewed next year and the Charter Trustees contribution 

reduced as appropriate.  A Charter Trustees sought clarification on 

the relevant legislation which applied.  He expressed his concern 

that the application for exemption had not been addressed sooner.  

Officers explained that subject to the outcome of the application the 

situation can be backdated to 1 April 2019.   

 the implications of the proposed budget for 2020/21 on local 
residents in light of the pressures on other services provided by the 
BCP Council. 

7



– 4 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
29 January 2020 

 
RESOLVED that:- 

(a) the draft budget for 2020-21 as set out in the appendix attached 
to the report and presented to the Charter Trustees be 
approved. 

(b) subject to (a) above a precept of £125,222 be submitted to BCP 
Council which represents £2.14 for a Band D property. 

(c) the VAT position be noted and the Mayor and Budget 
Signatories be updated on the implications for the budget. 

A recorded vote was taken as follows: 

For – 19 - Councillors Marcus Andrews, Steve Baron, Mike Brooke, 
David Brown, Richard Burton, Diana Butler, Daniel Butt, Bryan Dion, 
Millie Earl, Marion Le Poidevin, Chris Matthews, Sandra Moore, Pete 
Parrish, Karen Rampton, Felicity Rice, Vikki Slade, Ann Stribley, Tony 
Trent, Mike White.  

Against – 2 - Councillors L-J Evans and Tony O’Neill 

Abstentions – 0 
 

20. Order of Precedence for Civic Events  
 
The Charter Trustees considered a report on the order of precedence for 
Charter Trustee civic events, which had been circulated to each Trustee 
and a copy of which appears as Appendix ‘B’ to these Minutes in the Minute 
Book. 

A Charter Trustee referred to concerns which had been raised on the order 
of precedence and the importance of continuing the historic traditions of the 
mayoralty and the provisions of section 6 of the Trustees Standing Orders.  
She referred to the length of service of previous Borough of Poole 
Councillors which should be recognised alongside previous traditions.  
Reference was also made to the Remembrance Day Service in 2019 and 
the role which the Vice-Chairman of BCP Council had undertaken at the 
Service.  The Honorary Clerk’s representative explained that such 
invitations to Charter Trustee events would be for the Mayor to identify. 

RESOLVED that:- 

(a) section 6 of the Standing Orders of the Charter Trustees be 
amended as follows in respect of the Order of Precedence: 

Order of seniority of service to be determined by way of  total 
service to the former Borough of Poole in addition to service to 
the Charter Trustees for Poole and then by way of alphabetical 
order 

(b) Charter Trustees use the blue robes for civic events other than the 
civic party. 

 

8



– 5 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
29 January 2020 

 
21. Civic Roles for 2020/21  

 
Officers reported on the outcome of the ballot for civic roles for 2020/21 and 
confirmed that Councillor Tony Trent was the Sheriff designate for 2020/21. 

A Charter Trustee explained that being Sheriff does not automatically mean 
that they will progress to being Mayor the following year, although the 
Honorary Clerk’s representative advised that it had been a matter of custom 
for many years. The Mayor explained that the process provided for an open 
ballot. 

RESOLVED that the above report be received and noted. 
 

22. Any other business deemed necessary by the Clerk to the Charter Trustees  
 
The Mayor reported that several issues had been raised for discussion.  
She suggested that a further meeting be arranged for a few weeks time and 
a date be circulated to Charter Trustees. 

RESOLVED that arrangements be made for a Charter Trustees 
meeting in a few weeks time and a date be circulated.  
   
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.03 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



 – 1 – 
 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 July 2020 at 5.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr M Le Poidevin – Mayor 

Cllr B Dion – Deputy Mayor 

Present: Cllr J Bagwell (Sheriff), Cllr M Andrews, Cllr P Broadhead, 
Cllr M F Brooke, Cllr D Brown, Cllr R Burton, Cllr D Butler, Cllr D Butt, 
Cllr J J Butt, Cllr M Earl, Cllr A Hadley, Cllr M Haines, Cllr M Howell, 
Cllr M Iyengar, Cllr R Maidment, Cllr C Matthews, Cllr D Mellor, 
Cllr S Moore, Cllr T O'Neill, Cllr V Slade, Cllr A M Stribley, Cllr T Trent 
and Cllr M White 

 
1. Apologies  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor J Beesley, L-J Evans, N Greene, 
K Rampton, F Rice and M Robson. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations received for this meeting. 
 
Before moving onto item 3 the Mayor referred to the sad death of Councillor 
Pete Parrish and the Charter Trustees stood in silent tribute. 
 

3. Election of Charter Mayor and appointment of Mayoress/Escort  
 
Prior to consideration of the above issue Councillor Stribley referred to the 
requirements set out in the Standing Orders and in particular 2 a, b, c, 6 
and 10 f.  She referred to the requirement that there should be at least two 
ordinary meetings of the Charter Trustees during the year and that since 
March she had been requesting a meeting but had not received an 
acknowledgement. She referred to the impact of Covid on the civic year 
and proposed a motion that the current civic party should continue for the 
ensuing municipal year making sure that the subsequent year was not 
spoilt in the same way.  She acknowledged that this would be subject to the 
current Civic Party wishing to continue.  Councillor Stribley explained that 
she had asked the Clerk to the Trustees for that to be considered and 
asked for a meeting but had not had a satisfactory response. 

The Mayor referred to the original point of order and Officers clarified that 
meetings had been held in October 2019 and January 2020.   

Councillor Tony O’Neill indicated that he would second the proposal from 
Councillor Stribley. 

Councillor Trent referred to the content of the agenda and that it had not 
taken account of the issues raised by Councillor Stribley. He referred to the 
opportunity for an informal meeting to discuss the issue prior to the AGM.  
He confirmed that the he was happy with the proposal submitted by 
Councillor Stribley.  

11



– 2 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
22 July 2020 

 
The Honorary Clerk indicated that there was some learning about process 
and that any outstanding issues raised by Councillor Stribley would be 
considered.  He outlined the function of the AGM and the opportunity to 
consider a single motion in respect of items 3, 4 and 5. 

Councillor Bagwell indicated that she was going to propose that the Civic 
Party remain the same until next year with both her and Councillor Trent 
taking on the civic roles from May 2021.  Councillor Judy Butt indicated that 
the best way forward was for the present incumbents to remain until May 
2021 – with grateful thanks from the Charter Trustees for the work they 
have undertaken.  She wanted to ensure that the Sheriff and Mayor elect 
would take over in May 2021.  The Mayor commented on the process for 
the appointment of the new Civic Party for 2021 onwards.  Councillor Judy 
Butt sought an assurance that it would be Councillors Bagwell and Trent 
taking civic office in May 2021. The Honorary Clerk reported that technically 
that cannot be guaranteed but that there was an understanding that this 
would be the case. Councillor Stribley indicated that she did not object in 
principle to what was previously suggested by Councillor Judy Butt but 
highlighted the approval process.  

RESOLVED that the current Civic Party continue in their roles until 
May 2021 and that the Charter Trustees acknowledge the position for 
the proposed Civic Party for 2021/22 as detailed above. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

4. Election of Deputy Charter Mayor and appointment of Deputy 
Mayoress/Escort  
 
Please see decision above. 
 

5. Election of the Sheriff of Poole and appointment of the Sheriff's Lady/Escort  
 
Please see decision above. 
 

6. Appointment of one representative and substitute to the Association of 
Charter Trustees  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Tony Trent, with Councillor Daniel Butt as 
the substitute, be appointed to the Association of Charter Trustees for 
2020/21 Municipal Year. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

7. Appointment of Budget Signatories  
 
RESOLVED that Councillors Marcus Andrews and Tony O’Neill be 
appointed as budget signatories for the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 
 
 

12



– 3 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
22 July 2020 

 
8. Calendar of meetings for 2020/21  

 
Officers explained the purpose of each meeting as detailed in the proposed 
calendar of meetings. 

RESOLVED that the following calendar of meetings for 2020/21 be 
agreed: 
26 August 2020 at 5 pm 
28 October 2020 at 5 pm 
27 January 2021 at 5 pm 
21 May 2021 at 11 am 

Voting: Unanimous 

Councillor Stribley raised Standing Order 6 and in particular the order of 
precedence indicating that this issue had not been addressed.  Councillor 
Slade confirmed that the order of precedence and length of service had 
been discussed at a previous meeting of the Charter Trustees and an 
approach agreed.  It was suggested that the Charter Trustees be circulated 
with the decision on this issue and if necessary, the matter be raised at the 
meeting on 26 August 2020.  
 

9. Adoption of BCP Council Financial Regulations  
 
RESOLVED that for the avoidance of doubt the Charter Trustees have 
operated in accordance with the BCP Council Financial Regulations 
and until such time as they adopt their own financial regulations this 
practice will continue. 

Voting: Unanimous  
 

10. Delegation to the Chief Executive as Honorary Clerk to the Charter 
Trustees  
 
The Honorary Clerk responded to questions on the detail of the delegation 
and it was suggested that the terms of reference for any scheme of 
delegation should be documented.  The Honorary Clerk explained the 
Charter Trustees role was largely ceremonial and that he would review the 
position with officers and provide an update.  The Charter Trustees were 
advised that there had been an internal audit undertaken on the first year of 
operation and there were a number of recommendations including this 
issue and further information would be reported at the meeting in August.  

RESOLVED that the Chief Executive of BCP Council be formally 
appointed as the Honorary Clerk to the Charter Trustees and that the 
Honorary Clerk be delegated authority to act on behalf of the Charter 
Trustees to take all necessary actions and decisions which are not 
reserved to the Charter Trustees as a body. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

11. Appointment of Officers in accordance with the Standing Orders  
 
The Charter Trustees considered the process for the appointment of the 

13



– 4 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES OF POOLE 
22 July 2020 

 
Responsible Financial Officer and provided details of their experiences 
working with Mr Povey. 

RESOLVED that the BCP Council Deputy Section 151 Officer, Dan 
Povey, be appointed as the Responsible Financial Officer for the 
Charter Trustees. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

12. Any other business deemed necessary by the Clerk to the Charter Trustees  
 
Councillor Brooke referred to the VAT position and asked if the issue had 
been resolved.  Officers reported that the Charter Trustees would be 
updated on this issue at the meeting in August. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 5.41 pm  

 MAYOR 

14



This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed 
to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance.  The Council, its employees, agents and 
advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or 
implied in this report.  

BOURNEMOUTH & POOLE 
CHARTER TRUSTEES  
2019/20 

………………………………………………………………… 

Internal Audit 

Author: Jon Cockeram, Auditor 
Ruth Hodges, Audit Manager  

Version: Final 
Date:  August 2020 
Distribution: Richard Jones, Head of Democratic Services 

Karen Tompkins, Deputy Head of Democratic Services 
Dan Povey, Assistant Chief Finance Officer 
Graham Farrant, Honorary Clerk to the Charter Trustees 
Bournemouth Charter Trustees 
Poole Charter Trustees 
Simon Milne, Audit Manager (Deputy CIA) 
Nigel Stannard, Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

15

Agenda Item 5



This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & 
Management Assurance.  The Council, its employees, agents and advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or implied in 
this report.   

 
 

A. Executive Summary 

 

The control framework is the system of risk management, internal control and governance put in place by management to ensure that 
objectives are achieved, waste and inefficiency is minimised and to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.   
 
The objectives of the audit were to provide assurance that the control framework is appropriate and that the controls and processes are 
operating effectively in the Bournemouth & Poole Charter Trustees as outlined in the Annual Governance & Accountability Return 2019/20 for 
the internal control objectives detailed on the following page. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this paper to Charter Trustee is to be interpreted as reference to the charter trustee body. 
 
Where weaknesses in the control framework are identified, recommendations have been made for improvement and are detailed in Section B 
of this report. 
 
It should be noted that whilst Bournemouth and Poole Charter Trustees are separate entities from each other as well as separate from BCP 
Council, the issues identified apply to both Trustees and so one single report has been written.  
 
We undertake our work on a risk and sample basis in line with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and as such we do not test all internal 
controls nor identify all areas of control weakness, fraud or irregularity, however, any issues identified during the course of our work are 
reported to management. 

Audit Opinions: 

Substantial Assurance 
There is a sound control framework which is designed to achieve the service objectives, with key controls being consistently 
applied.   

Reasonable Assurance Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, there are some weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.   

Partial Assurance There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting service objectives at risk.   

Minimal Assurance The control framework is generally poor as such service objectives are at significant risk.   

 
  

16



Page | 3  
 

Internal Control Objective Opinion 
Recommendation priority Total number of 

recommendations High Medium Low 

Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial 
year 

Reasonable 0 0 0 0 

The Trustee complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by 
invoices, all expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for 

Partial 2 1 0 3 

The Trustee assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed 
the adequacy of arrangements to manage these 

Minimal 1 0 0 1 

The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; 
progress against the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were 
appropriate 

Reasonable 0 1 1 2 

Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded 
and promptly banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for 

Substantial 0 0 0 0 

Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash 
expenditure was approved and VAT appropriately accounted for 

Not 
applicable 

0 0 0 0 

Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with 
this authority’s approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied 

Partial 1 0 0 1 

Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly 
maintained 

Partial 1 0 1 2 

Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out Substantial 0 0 0 0 

Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct 
accounting basis (receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the 
cash book, supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records and where 
appropriate debtors and creditors were properly recorded 

Not 
applicable 

0 0 0 0 

If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2018/19, 
it met the exemption criteria and correctly declared itself exempt 

Not 
applicable 

0 0 0 0 

The authority has demonstrated that during summer 2019 it correctly provided for 
the exercise of public rights as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

Substantial 0 0 0 0 

Trustee funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a 
trustee 

Not 
applicable 

0 0 0 0 

Other issues Partial 1 0 0 1 

Total recommendations 6 2 2 10 

 

17



This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & 
Management Assurance.  The Council, its employees, agents and advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or implied in 
this report.   

 
 

Summary of Findings: 

High Priority 

• Financial regulations & Scheme of delegation: The Trustees do not have an approved set of financial regulations and the scheme of delegation is 
potentially inappropriate. 

• Risk recognition & mitigation: The Trustees have not got risk registers in place. 

• Employee costs: Not all costs for BCP Council employee time have been recharged to the Trustees. 

• Charter Trustee assets: No formal confirmation has taken place during 2019/20 that Trustee assets are physically present. 

• Donated Services: it is not possible to identify whether the Trustees are in receipt of donated services from BCP Council. 

Medium Priority 

• Budget Signatories: There are no formal descriptions of what the role of a budget signatory comprises. 

• Budgets: Budgets for 2019/20 and 2020/21 are based on legacy Council Mayoralty costs with no subsequent consideration of other factors. 

Low Priority 

• Budgets: The Trustees have had minimal regular involvement in the budget monitoring process. 

• Use of funds:  The Trustees do not receive any interest from sums invested by BCP Council. 

 

Recommendation Priority Ratings: 

High Priority 

High Priority recommendations have actual / potential critical implications for the achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a major effect on service 
delivery.   

Agreed actions should be urgently implemented by the Service and the associated risk(s) added to the Service Risk Register.   

These recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as they fall due.   

Medium 
Priority 

Medium Priority recommendations have actual / potential significant implications for the achievement of the Service’s ob jectives and/or a significant effect 
on service delivery.   

Agreed actions should be implemented by the Service and formal consideration should be given to adding the associated risk(s) to the Service Risk Register.   

These recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as they fall due.   

Low Priority 
Low Priority recommendations have actual / potential minor implications for achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a minor effect on service delivery.   

It rests with the Service implement these actions and advise Internal Audit of the outcome.   

 

18



Page | 5  
 

B. Findings & Recommendations 

 
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

1. Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial year Reasonable 

The Charter Trustees use BCP Council’s financial management system, Oracle Fusion, to record transactions. Each Trustee has an individual cost centre to ensure that 
the transactions of the Trustee are clearly identifiable and separate from those of the Council. Whilst in year, transactions were recorded against a combined cost centre, 
this has now been appropriately split and future arrangements are sound. 

2. The Trustee complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all expenditure was approved 
and VAT was appropriately accounted for 

Partial 

The Trustees’ Standing Orders make reference to the fact that the Clerk to the Trustees shall be appointed by BCP Council, as will any officers necessary to cover the 
secretarial and financial requirements of the Charter Trustees. There is no reference to the appointment of these officers in the minutes of either the Charter Trustees or 
of BCP Council meetings. This, however, is an issue for BCP Council as opposed to the Trustees and a recommendation covering this has been made separate to this 
report. 

It should be highlighted that during 2019/20 the Trustees have had to pay out VAT as an application to HMRC to be able to reclaim VAT under Section 33 of the VAT Act 
1984 had not been made. It had been incorrectly understood that the Council’s VAT exemption would also apply to the Trustees. This has cost the Trustees £11k & £22k 
which has been correctly accounted for during the year and had been incorporated into the budgets so the Trustees have not operated at a deficit. The application has 
now been made and from November 2020 they will be able to reclaim VAT. The Trustees will need to consider amendments to future budgets to take account of the 
change.  

R1 Financial Regulations 

Issue: The Trustees do not have their own sets of 
Financial Regulations and there are no formally 
documented decisions to use those of BCP Council 
It has been assumed that BCP regulations apply but 
this raises questions of applicability: for example, 
are the procurement limits within the BCP 
regulations suitable for the Charter Trustees, which 
are significantly smaller and have significantly less 
expenditure than the Council? 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees either: 

a) Develop their own 
sets of financial 
regulations; 

b) Formally adopt those 
of BCP Council; or 

c) Amend those of BCP 
Council to ensure that 
they are relevant to 

High For all operational 
arrangements the 
Charter Trustees have 
been adhering to the 
BCP Council Financial 
Regulations since 
establishment.  

In response to this 
Audit, the Charter 
Trustees at their 
meeting in July 2020 
adopted the BCP 

Daniel Povey November 
2020 

19



Page | 6  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

Risk: The Trustees are operating without formally 
agreed financial regulations 

the Trustee’s 
circumstances 

Council Financial 
Regulations but it is 
recognised that further 
work is required to 
develop 
supplementary 
provisions which are 
specifically relevant to 
the Charter Trustees. 

R2 Scheme of delegation 

Issue: BCP officers carrying out Trustee 
transactions currently operate under the BCP 
Scheme of Delegation for authorisation of 
expenditure, which allows for officers not formally 
appointed to the Trustees to authorise expenditure 

Risk: Expenditure is authorised inappropriately 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees develop their own 
authorisation policy for 
expenditure 

High For all operational 
arrangements the 
Charter Trustees have 
been adhering to the 
BCP Council Financial 
Regulations since 
establishment.  

In response to this 
Audit, the Charter 
Trustees at their 
meeting in July 2020 
appointed the Chief 
Executive as Honorary 
Clerk and delegated 
authority to act on 
behalf of the Charter 
Trustees to take all 
necessary actions and 
decisions which are 
not reserved to the 
Charter Trustees as a 
body. 

It is recognised that 
further work is 
required to develop 

Daniel Povey / 
Karen 
Tompkins 

November 
2020 

20



Page | 7  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

specific spending 
limits and define what 
is the reserve of the 
Charter Trustees. 

R3 Budget signatories 

Issue: There is no formal description of what the 
role of a budget signatory is within the Trustee 
handbooks. This role should encompass amongst 
other areas, regular budget monitoring, authorisation 
of significant expenditure and setting the budget for 
the following year 

Risk:  Budget signatories may not be fulfilling their 
roles correctly 

 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees’ Standing Orders 
are amended to include 
descriptions of what the 
role of Budget Signatory 
entails 

Medium The Standing Orders 
and Handbook will be 
reviewed by the 
Charter Trustees to 
incorporate the 
recommendations 
arising from this audit 
recommendation 

Karen 
Tompkins 

October 
2020 

3. The Trustee assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the adequacy of arrangements to 
manage these 

Minimal 

R4 Risk recognition and mitigation 

Issue: The Trustees do not have risk registers in 
place to identify risks to themselves and the 
functions they wish to carry out. The BCP Council 
Law & Governance risk register does contain risks 
that are relevant to the Trustees, however as they 
are in the Council’s risk register then they are seen 
as risks to the Council, not the Trustee; this is 
inappropriate. 

Risk: The Trustees are exposed to unmitigated & 
unnecessary risks   

 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees put risk registers 
in place and consider how 
best to mitigate any risks 
identified. The Trustees 
should be involved in risk 
identification and 
developing mitigation 
strategies. 

High The risks for the 
Charter Trustees have 
been managed 
through BCP Council 
Democratic Services 
as a whole. 

It is accepted that a 
separate risk register 
for the Charter 
Trustees should be 
maintained and this 
will be put in place. 

Karen 
Tompkins 

August 
2020 

21



Page | 8  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

4. The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; progress against the budget was regularly 
monitored; and reserves were appropriate 

Reasonable 

R5 Budgets 

Issue: Budgets, including recharges, have been 
based on estimation and previous Mayoralty costs 
and so may not reflect the actual needs of the 
Trustees 

Risk: Budgets are excessive, causing superfluous 
cost to taxpayers, or insufficient, meaning the 
Trustees cannot carry out their desired functions 

It is recommended that the 
budget setting process, 
including how recharges 
are calculated, is reviewed 
prior to the 2021/22 budget 
being set 

Medium Agreed Daniel Povey February 
2021 

R6 Budgets 

Issue: There has been minimal regular involvement 
of the Trustees in the budget monitoring process 

Risk: The Trustees makes decisions which are not 
financially viable 

 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees are involved in 
the regular budget 
monitoring process. 

Low The Charter Trustees 
are only required to 
meet twice plus the 
AGM. The other 
meetings include the 
budget setting and 
projected out-turn. 

The Standing Orders 
and Handbook will be 
reviewed by the 
Charter Trustees to 
incorporate the 
recommendations 
arising from this audit 
recommendation 

Karen 
Tompkins 

October 
2020 

5. Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and promptly banked; and VAT was 
appropriately accounted for 

Substantial 

The main source of income for the Trustees is the annual precept. No other sources of income have been identified beyond Trustees repaying the Trustee for a luncheon 
at the Mayor Making Ceremonies. This is appropriate and as expected – the Trustees are not collecting income for charities, so there should be no other sources of 
income. 

22



Page | 9  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

6. Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash expenditure was approved, and VAT appropriately 
accounted for 

Not applicable 

The Trustees themselves do not have petty cash floats nor do any of the staff appointed by the Council to work on the trustees. The Council staff have access to payment 
cards which are included in the expenditure section above.  

7. Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with this authority’s approvals, and PAYE and 
NI requirements were properly applied 

Partial 

Trustees do not receive allowances for their role on the Charter Trusts. BCP Council’s payroll system has been reviewed in 2019/20 by Internal Audit and has been noted 
to correctly adhere to PAYE and NI requirements.  

It should be noted that due to the nature of the relationship between the Council and the Trustees, employee costs recharged to the Trustees are VAT-able, therefore the 
VAT issues raised in Section 2 of this report are also applicable to this section. 

R7 Employee costs 

Issue: Not all costs for Council employee time 
relating to the Charter Trustees have been 
recharged to the Trustees. Those for the Head & 
Deputy Head of Democratic Services have not been 
included in either salary recharges or in any other 
form of recharge. 

Risk: The Trustees appear to be more profitable 
than they should be 

It is recommended that all 
costs for employee time 
relating to the Trustees are 
recharged to the Trustees 

High It was anticipated that 
the time allocation 
required to support the 
Charter Trustees 
would be incidental for 
certain posts and 
recharges would not 
be required. 

Arrangements will be 
put in place for time 
recording to be 
introduced to assess 
and calculate 
employee costs. This 
will be for the period 1 
September to 30 
November 2020. 

These will be reported 
to the Charter 
Trustees at their 

Karen 
Tompkins 

January 
2021 23



Page | 10  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

budget setting meeting 
for 2021/22  

 

8. Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained Partial 

R8 Charter Trustee assets 

Issue: The Charter Trustee assets which includes 
mayoral insignia and chains of office, some of which 
have significant financial value, have not been 
formally confirmed to be physically present since the 
asset revaluation was carried out in April 2019.  

Risk: Assets may have been misplaced or 
misappropriated 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees ensure that 
regular, formal, 
proportionate asset 
verification exercises are 
carried out 

High An annual verification 
of assets will be put in 
place to comply with 
this recommendation, 
including a current in-
year exercise. 

The Standing Orders 
and Handbook will be 
reviewed by the 
Charter Trustees to 
incorporate the 
recommendations 
arising from this audit 
recommendation, 
including the potential 
disposal of assets. 

 

 

Karen 
Tompkins 

 

 

 

Karen 
Tompkins 

 

 

October 
2020 

 

 

 

January 
2021 

R9 Use of funds 

Issue: The funds that the Trustee has are kept as 
part of BCP Council’s general funds and so are 
included in any amounts used by the Council for 
short term investment under its Treasury 
Management Policy. These investments usually 
receive interest, however none of this interest has 
been allocated to the Trustees. It is difficult to 
identify what portion of an invested amount would be 
from Trustee funds and what would be from Council 

It is recommended that the 
Trustees consider a policy 
on how their funds should 
be invested when they are 
not required. 

Low Due to the size of 
funds involved it is not 
cost effective for the 
Charter Trustees to 
have their own 
investment policy or 
investments.  

It is proposed that in 
order for the Charter 
Trustees to receive a 
fair allocation of 
investment income, 

Daniel Povey April 2021 

24



Page | 11  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

funds, however there should be some consideration 
for this. 

Risk: The Trusts are not recognising all income due 

that they are 
apportioned interest at 
the year-end based on 
the average of their 
opening and closing 
reserve balance, 
multiplied by the BCP 
Council average 
annual investment 
return for the year. 

 

9. Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out Substantial 

The Trusts do not have individual bank accounts – instead, their funds form part of BCP Council’s bank balance. Internal Audit has carried out work separately on this to 
confirm that bank reconciliations are carried out periodically throughout the year with no issues identified. As such, Internal Audit considers that there are no issues at this 
point in time within this control objective which need to be brought to the attention of the Trusts. 

10. Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct accounting basis (receipts and payments or 
income and expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records and where 
appropriate debtors and creditors were properly recorded 

Not applicable 

Formal financial statements are only produced at year end, and these are considered by the external auditor as part of their annual audit process. In-year budget 
monitoring has been considered in section 4 of this report, and as such Internal Audit considers that this part of the Annual Internal Audit Report is not applicable to the 
Trustees at this point in time.  

 

11. If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2018/19, it met the exemption criteria and 
correctly declared itself exempt 

Not applicable 

The Trustees only came into existence in 2019/20, and so did not certify themselves as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2018/19. Internal Audit considers this 
part of the Annual Internal Audit Report not to be applicable to the Trustees at this point in time. 

 

25



Page | 12  
 

Rec 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target 
Date 

12. The authority has demonstrated that during summer 2019 it correctly provided for the exercise of public rights as required 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

Substantial 

The Trustees have notices on the relevant sections of the BCP Council website advertising the public’s right to inspect the accounts for the 2019/20 accounting 
statements. Due to the current pandemic, these have been modified in accordance with the relevant guidance. As such, Internal Audit considers that there are no issues 
at this point in time within this control objective which need to be brought to the attention of the Trustees. 

13. Trustee funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a trustee Not applicable 

BCP Council is not one of the Charter trustees but supports the Trusts in several ways. 

14. Other Issues Partial 

As noted above, BCP Council is not one of the Charter trustees but supports the Trusts in several ways, such as the provision of ICT equipment, use of financial systems, 
use of premises and so on. Whilst some of these things are recharged to the Trustees, there is no clear definition of what is covered by each recharge, For example, there 
is a recharge for Accountancy, but it is not clear whether this is for the time spent by Accountancy staff appointed to manage the financial requirements of the Trustee for 
the use of the various financial systems. Similarly, the ICT recharge could be for the provision and maintenance of ICT equipment, access to the Council network and 
software or other items. As such, there is a possibility that the Council are donating services and, as noted earlier in section 7, staff time to the Trusts without this being 
recognised in the Trustee accounts. 

R10 Donated services 

Issue: It is not possible to identify whether the 
Trustees are in receipt of donated services from the 
Council which should be recognised in the Trustees’ 
accounts 

Risk: The Trustees are appearing to be more self-
sufficient than they actually are 

It is recommended that 
Service Level Agreements 
are put in place between 
the Council and the 
Trustees to formally set 
out what is being provided 
by the Council and what 
value this has to the 
Trustees 

High Although this is 
identified as High 
priority, the impact of 
not having an SLA 
with BCP Council is 
low risk. 

An SLA will be 
developed to establish 
the services to be 
provided for the 
2021/22 budget setting 
process 

Karen 
Tompkins 

January 
2021 

 

26



A1:N14O17A1:N13A1:N15O17A1:N13A1:J1A1:N17Risk Register for The Charter Trustees RISK REGISTER COMPLETED BY: DATE: ######

Risk Key: Objectives of the Project, Policy, Initiative, Service etc:

A: 

B: 

C: 

D: 

E: 

F: 

Risk (uncertainty which may affect 

objective)

Risk Cause (definite situational 

facts affecting the objective)

Risk Impact (contingent effect on 

objective)

I L S I L S I L S

1 Failure to safeguard Assets  Damage to or loss of civic regalia Loss of irreplaceable items Res
Charter 

Trustees 
4 1 4

All appropriate measures are in 

place to secure and safeguard 

these historical ceremonial assets 
4 1 4

Undertake an annual asset verification to 

maintain the integrity of the assets and a 

review of the insurance arrangements. 

Deputy Head of 

Democratic 

Services 

White Dec-20

4 1 4

2 Failure to safeguard resources 

Non-compliance with the financial 

regulations adopted by the 

Charter Trustees 

Loss of financial revenue from the 

Charter Trustee accounts 
Res

Charter 

Trustees 
2 1 2

The Charter Trustees have 

operated in accordance with the 

BCP Council Financial Regulations 

this will continue until such time 

as the  Charter Trustees develop 

their own financial regulations.  

In addition it is necessary to 

define the role of the budget 

signatories as recommended by 

the internal audit report.

1 1 1

Introducation and approval of Financial 

Regulations for the Charter Trustees 

Deputy Head of 

Democratic 

Services, 

Responsible 

Financial Officer 

White Nov-20

1 1 1

3

Failure to prevent civic 

dignatory from sustaining 

personal injury  

Civic dignitory sustains an injury 

at an engagement 

Potential liability and claim 

against the Charter Trustees and 

reputational damage 

Phys
Charter 

Trustees 
3 1 3

In order to ensure the personal 

safety of Civic dignitories at 

engagements and events all 

appropriate arrangements would 

be put in place with the event 

organisers in consultation with 

the Civic Team. Eg Chauffeur 

always in attendance when chains 

of office are worn  

3 1 3

Neither the Mayors or former Mayors have 

raised any concerns in respect of further 

measures being required. No further 

action has been identified. 

Deputy Head of 

Democratic 

Services 

Green N/A

3 1 3

4
Failure to prevent civic dignitory 

from contracting Covid 19

Exposure of civic dignitories and 

civic team to the virus 

Increase risk of spreading the 

virus on a local basis 
Phys 

Charter 

Trustees 
2 3 6

In order to comply with current 

Government guidance all 

engagements will cease and 

alternative options such as 

undertaking engagements 

virtually are considered  

2 1 2

To continue to monitor and adhere to 

Government guidance on social 

distancing. 

Deputy Head of 

Democratic 

Services 

Green Ongoing 

2 1 2

Risk 

No

Risk Mitigation/Control 

Measures Put in Place
Risk Owner

Gross Risk Score 

(ie as if no 

mitigations/ 

controls in 

place)

Risk 

Category/

ies

Democratic Services 

Control/Action 

Owner

Control/ 

Action Target 

Completion 

Date
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Target Risk Score 

(ie rating of risk 

once these new 

actions 

successfully 

implemented)

Gross/Initial Risk
Net Risk Score 

(ie rating of the 

risk with 

current controls 

or procedures 

in place)

Further Action (ie mitigation/

controls) required

Control/ 

Action 

RAG 

Status

Corporate Risk Categories:
Pol=Political
Econ=Economic
S=Social
T=Technological
L=Legislative

Enviro=Environmental
Comp=Competitive
Cust=Customer/Citizen
Rep=Reputation
Phys=Physical

Service Risk Categories:
Res=Resource
L=Legal

Cont=Contractual
T=Technological
Enviro=Environmental

Page 1 of 1

27

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

28



Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3

To be completed by Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and 
other Smaller Authorities*:
• where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure exceeded £25,000 

but did not exceed £6.5 million; or
• where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure was £25,000  

or less but that:
• are unable to certify themselves as exempt (fee payable); or
• have requested a limited assurance review (fee payable)

Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and  
Accountability Return 2019/20  
1. Every smaller authority in England that either received gross income or incurred gross expenditure  

exceeding £25,000 must complete Part 3 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return at  
the end of each financial year in accordance with Proper Practices.

2. The Annual Governance and Accountability Return is made up of three parts, pages 3 to 6: 
 

• The Annual Internal Audit Report is completed by the authority’s internal auditor. 
• Sections 1 and 2 are to be completed and approved by the authority.  
• Section 3 is completed by the external auditor and will be returned to the authority. 

3. The authority must approve Section 1, Annual Governance Statement, before approving Section 2,  
Accounting Statements, and both must be approved and published before 1 July 2020.

4. An authority with either gross income or gross expenditure exceeding £25,000 or an authority with  
neither income nor expenditure exceeding £25,000, but which is unable to certify itself as exempt, or is 
requesting a limited assurance review, must return to the external auditor by email or post (not both) no 
later than 30 June 2020. Reminder letters will incur a charge of £40 +VAT: 
 

• the Annual Governance and Accountability Return Sections 1 and 2, together with 
• a bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2020 
• an explanation of any significant year on year variances in the accounting statements 
• notification of the commencement date of the period for the exercise of public rights 
• Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20

Unless requested, do not send any additional documents to your external auditor. Your external auditor will 
ask for any additional documents needed.
Once the external auditor has completed the limited assurance review and is able to give an opinion, the 
Annual Governance and Accountability Section1, Section 2 and Section 3 – External Auditor Report 
and Certificate will be returned to the authority by email or post.

Publication Requirements
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, authorities must publish the following information on  
a publicly accessible website:
Before 1 July 2020 authorities must publish:
• Notice of the period for the exercise of public rights and a declaration that the accounting statements  

are as yet unaudited;
• Section 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2019/20, approved and signed, page 4
• Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2019/20, approved and signed, page 5
Not later than 30 September 2020 authorities must publish:
• Notice of conclusion of audit
• Section 3 - External Auditor Report and Certificate
• Sections 1 and 2 of AGAR including any amendments as a result of the limited assurance review.
It is recommended as best practice, to avoid any potential confusion by local electors and interested  
parties, that you also publish the Annual Internal Audit Report, page 3.

Page 1 of 6Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

The Annual Governance and Accountability Return constitutes the annual return referred to in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
Throughout, the words ‘external auditor’ have the same meaning as the words ‘local auditor’ in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

*for a complete list of bodies that may be smaller authorities refer to schedule 2 to the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

29

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 6

Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and 
Accountability Return 2019/20 
• The authority must comply with Proper Practices in completing Sections 1 and 2 of this Annual Governance and

Accountability Return. Proper Practices are found in the Practitioners’ Guide* which is updated from time to time
and contains everything needed to prepare successfully for the financial year-end and the subsequent work by
the external auditor.

• Make sure that the Annual Governance and Accountability Return is complete (no highlighted boxes left empty),
and is properly signed and dated. Where amendments are made by the authority to the AGAR after it has
been approved by the authority and before it has been reviewed by the external auditor, the Chairman and
RFO should initial the amendments and if necessary republish the amended AGAR and recommence the
period for the exercise of public rights. If the AGAR contains unapproved or unexplained amendments, it may
be returned and additional costs will be incurred.

• The authority should receive and note the annual internal audit report if possible before approving the annual
governance statement and the accounts.

• Use the checklist provided below to review the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for completeness
before returning it to the external auditor by email or post (not both) no later than 30 June 2020.

• Do not send the external auditor any information not specifically requested. However, you must inform your
external auditor about any change of Clerk, Responsible Financial Officer or Chairman, and provide
relevant email addresses and telephone numbers.

• Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation to be sent to your external auditor with the Annual Governance
and Accountability Return covers all the bank accounts. If the authority holds any short-term investments, note their
value on the bank reconciliation. The external auditor must be able to agree the bank reconciliation to Box 8 on the
accounting statements (Section 2, page 5). An explanation must be provided of any difference between Box 7 and
Box 8. More help on bank reconciliation is available in the Practitioners’ Guide*.

• Explain fully significant variances in the accounting statements on page 5. Do not just send a copy of the detailed
accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the reasons
for all variances. Include complete numerical and narrative analysis to support the full variance.

• If the external auditor has to review unsolicited information, or receives an incomplete bank reconciliation, or
variances are not fully explained, additional costs may be incurred.

• Make sure that the accounting statements add up and that the balance carried forward from the previous year
(Box 7 of 2019) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (Box 1 of 2020).

• The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO), on behalf of the authority, must set the period for the exercise of public
rights. From the commencement date for a single period of 30 consecutive working days, the approved accounts
and accounting records can be inspected. Whatever period the RFO sets it must include a common inspection
period – during which the accounts and accounting records of all smaller authorities must be available for public
inspection – of the first ten working days of July.

• The authority must publish the information required by Regulation 15 (2), Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015,
including the period for the exercise of public rights and the name and address of the external auditor before
1 July 2020.

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Completion checklist – ‘No’ answers mean you may not have met requirements

All sections

Section 1

Section 2

Sections 1 and 2

Internal Audit Report

Have all highlighted boxes have been completed?

For any statement to which the response is ‘no’, has an explanation been published?

Has an explanation of significant variations from last year to this year been published?

Has the bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2020 been reconciled to Box 8?

Has an explanation of any difference between Box 7 and Box 8 been provided?

Have all highlighted boxes been completed by the internal auditor and explanations provided?

Has all additional information requested, including the dates set for the period 
for the exercise of public rights, been provided for the external auditor?

Trust funds – have all disclosures been made if the authority as a body corporate is a 
sole managing trustee? NB: do not send trust accounting statements unless requested.

Has the authority’s approval of the accounting statements been confirmed by 
the signature of the Chairman of the approval meeting?

Yes No

*Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities in England – a Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices,
can be downloaded from www.nalc.gov.uk or from www.ada.org.uk











N/A





N/A

30



This authority’s internal auditor, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk, 
carried out a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls to be in 
operation during the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

The internal audit for 2019/20 has been carried out in accordance with this authority’s needs 
and planned coverage. On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit 
conclusions are summarised in this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control 
and alongside are the internal audit conclusions on whether, in all significant respects, the control 
objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a standard adequate to meet the 
needs of this authority.

Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20

ENTER NAME OF AUTHORITY

Page 3 of 6Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

*If the response is ‘no’ you must include a note to state the implications and action being taken to address any weakness in control
identified (add separate sheets if needed).

**Note: If the response is ‘not covered’ please state when the most recent internal audit work was done in this area and when it is 
next planned, or, if coverage is not required, the annual internal audit report must explain why not (add separate sheets if needed).

For any other risk areas identified by this authority adequate controls existed (list any other risk areas on separate sheets if needed).

DD/MM/YYSIGNATURE REQUIRED
Date

Signature of person who 
carried out the internal audit

DD/MM/YY DD/MM/YYDD/MM/YY
Name of person who carried out the internal auditDate(s) internal audit undertaken

ENTER NAME OF INTERNAL AUDITOR

A.  Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial year.
B.  This authority complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all

expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for.
C.  This authority assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the adequacy

of arrangements to manage these.

D.  The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; progress against
the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were appropriate.

E.  Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and promptly
banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for.

F. Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash expenditure was
approved and VAT appropriately accounted for.

G. Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with this authority’s
approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied.

J. Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct accounting basis
(receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an
adequate audit trail from underlying records and where appropriate debtors and creditors were
properly recorded.

H. Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained.
I. Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out.

K. IF the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2018/19, it met the
exemption criteria and correctly declared itself exempt. (If the authority had a limited assurance
review of its 2018/19 AGAR tick “not covered”)

Yes No*

Agreed? Please choose 
one of the following

Internal control objective

Not
covered**

L. The authority has demonstrated that during summer 2019 it correctly provided for the exercise
of public rights as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

M. (For local councils only)
Trust funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a trustee.

Yes No Not applicable

Poole Charter Trustee

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

July 2020 Jon Cockeram

11/08/2020

31



*Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each ‘No’ response and describe how the
authority will address the weaknesses identified. These sheets must be published with the Annual Governance Statement.

Section 1 – Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

We acknowledge as the members of:

ENTER NAME OF AUTHORITY

Page 4 of 6Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, including arrangements for 
the preparation of the Accounting Statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with 
respect to the Accounting Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, that:

1. We have put in place arrangements for effective financial
management during the year, and for the preparation of
the accounting statements.

2. We maintained an adequate system of internal control
including measures designed to prevent and detect fraud
and corruption and reviewed its effectiveness.

4. We provided proper opportunity during the year for
the exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

5. We carried out an assessment of the risks facing this
authority and took appropriate steps to manage those
risks, including the introduction of internal controls and/or
external insurance cover where required.

6. We maintained throughout the year an adequate and
effective system of internal audit of the accounting
records and control systems.

7. We took appropriate action on all matters raised
in reports from internal and external audit.

8. We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or
commitments, events or transactions, occurring either
during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on
this authority and, where appropriate, have included them
in the accounting statements.

9. (For local councils only) Trust funds including
charitable. In our capacity as the sole managing
trustee we discharged our accountability
responsibilities for the fund(s)/assets, including
financial reporting and, if required, independent
examination or audit.

3. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves
that there are no matters of actual or potential
non-compliance with laws, regulations and Proper
Practices that could have a significant financial effect
on the ability of this authority to conduct its
business or manage its finances.

prepared its accounting statements in accordance  
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

‘Yes’ means that this authority:Yes No*
Agreed

made proper arrangements and accepted responsibility 
for safeguarding the public money and resources in  
its charge.

has only done what it has the legal power to do and has 
complied with Proper Practices in doing so.

during the year gave all persons interested the opportunity to 
inspect and ask questions about this authority’s accounts.

considered and documented the financial and other risks it 
faces and dealt with them properly.
An internal audit identified the absence of a risk register for 
2019/20. This has subsequently been addressed for 2020/21.

arranged for a competent person, independent of the financial 
controls and procedures, to give an objective view on whether 
internal controls meet the needs of this smaller authority.

responded to matters brought to its attention by internal and 
external audit.

disclosed everything it should have about its business activity 
during the year including events taking place after the year 
end if relevant.

has met all of its responsibilities where, as a body 
corporate, it is a sole managing trustee of a local 
trust or trusts.

Yes No N/A

AUTHORITY WEBSITE ADDRESS
Authority web address
Other information required by the Transparency Codes (not part of Annual Governance Statement)

Signed by the Chairman and Clerk of the meeting where 
approval was given:

Chairman

Clerk
SIGNATURE REQUIRED

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

This Annual Governance Statement was approved at a 
meeting of the authority on:

and recorded as minute reference:

MINUTE REFERENCE

26/08/2020

Poole Charter Trustee



















32



I certify that for the year ended 31 March 2020 the Accounting 
Statements in this Annual Governance and Accountability 
Return have been prepared on either a receipts and payments 
or income and expenditure basis following the guidance in 
Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities – a 
Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices and present fairly  
the financial position of this authority.

I confirm that these Accounting Statements were
approved by this authority on this date:

Signed by Chairman of the meeting where the Accounting 
Statements were approved

Signed by Responsible Financial Officer before being  
presented to the authority for approval

as recorded in minute reference:

MINUTE REFERENCE

DD/MM/YY

DD/MM/YY

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

Date

8. Total value of cash and 
short term investments

9. Total fixed assets plus 
long term investments  
and assets

10. Total borrowings

The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, cash 
holdings and short term investments held as at 31 March – 
To agree with bank reconciliation.
The value of all the property the authority owns – it is made 
up of all its fixed assets and long term investments as at  
31 March.
The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans 
from third parties (including PWLB).

11. (For Local Councils Only) Disclosure note 
re Trust funds (including charitable)

The Council, as a body corporate, acts as sole trustee for 
and is responsible for managing Trust funds or assets.
N.B. The figures in the accounting statements above do 
not include any Trust transactions.

Yes No

1. Balances brought  
forward

2. (+) Precept or Rates and 
Levies

4. (-) Staff costs

5. (-) Loan interest/capital 
repayments

6.  (-) All other payments

7. (=) Balances carried 
forward

3. (+) Total other receipts

Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year  
as recorded in the financial records. Value must agree to 
Box 7 of previous year.

Please round all figures to nearest £1. Do not leave any 
boxes blank and report £0 or Nil balances. All figures must 
agree to underlying financial records.

Notes and guidanceYear ending
31 March 

2019 
£

31 March 
2020 

£

Total amount of precept (or for IDBs rates and levies) 
received or receivable in the year. Exclude any grants 
received.
Total income or receipts as recorded in the cashbook less 
the precept or rates/levies received (line 2). Include any 
grants received.

Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf  
of all employees. Include gross salaries and wages,  
employers NI contributions, employers pension  
contributions, gratuities and severance payments.
Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest
made during the year on the authority’s borrowings (if any).

Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cash-
book less staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital 
repayments (line 5).
Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must 
equal (1+2+3) - (4+5+6).

Section 2 – Accounting Statements 2019/20 for

ENTER NAME OF AUTHORITY

Page 5 of 6Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Poole Charter Trustee

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

37,657.53

-31,142.47

0

-55,200
0

124,000

0

37,657.53

0

X

1,277,055

33



Page 6 of 6

Section 3 – External Auditor Report and Certificate 2019/20

ENTER NAME OF AUTHORITY

ENTER NAME OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

1 Respective responsibilities of the body and the auditor
This authority is responsible for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that 
it has a sound system of internal control. The authority prepares an Annual Governance and Accountability 
Return in accordance with Proper Practices which: 
• summarises the accounting records for the year ended 31 March 2020; and 
• confirms and provides assurance on those matters that are relevant to our duties and responsibilities as 

external auditors. 
Our responsibility is to review Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return in accordance 
with guidance issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(see note below). Our work does not constitute an audit carried out in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and does not provide the same level of assurance that such an audit would do.

2 External auditor report 2019/20

*Note: the NAO issued guidance applicable to external auditors’ work on limited assurance reviews in Auditor  
Guidance Note AGN/02. The AGN is available from the NAO website (www.nao.org.uk)

DD/MM/YYSIGNATURE REQUIRED
Date

External Auditor Name

(Except for the matters reported below)* on the basis of our review of Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return, in 
our opinion the information in Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return is in accordance with Proper Practices and 
no other matters have come to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met. 
(*delete as appropriate).

Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the authority:

*We do not certify completion because:

(continue on a separate sheet if required)

(continue on a separate sheet if required)

3 External auditor certificate 2019/20
We certify/do not certify* that we have completed our review of Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and 
Accountability Return, and discharged our responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, for 
the year ended 31 March 2020.

External Auditor Signature

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3  
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

In respect of

34



Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019-20
Addendum – Coronavirus Emergency Regulation changes

The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020

Owing to the increasing impact of COVID19 MHCLG has made amended  
Regulations which extend the statutory audit deadlines for 2019-20 only for  
all Category 2 smaller authorities (town and parish councils, parish meetings,  
internal drainage boards and other authorities).

• The requirement for the public inspection period to include the first 10 working 
days of July has been removed 

• Instead, smaller authorities must commence the public inspection period on or 
before 1 September 2020

• The AGAR must be approved and published by 31 August 2020 at the latest or 
may be approved earlier, wherever possible.

This means that the period for the exercise of public rights can now be held any  
time after the approval of the accounts and AGAR as long as it is commenced  
on 1 September at the latest. 

Authorities should publish the dates of their public inspection period. If this is  
significantly earlier or later than in previous years they should inform the public 
through their websites (where available) of the reasons why they are departing  
from normal practice for 2020.

• The publication date for final, audited, accounts will move from 30 September  
to 30 November 2020 for all local authorities. 

This is the date by which the Part 3 AGAR Sections 1, 2 and 3 including the  
completed External Auditor Report and Certificate must be published.

This does not apply to an authority that has certified itself as exempt and submitted 
a Certificate of Exemption to the external auditor.

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility 
of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020

In relation to the meetings needed to approve the accounts and AGAR, MHCLG has 
made separate Regulations to enable meetings to be held remotely, and to hold and 
alter the frequency and occurrence of meetings without the need for further notice. 

The provisions for remote meetings apply to all authorities EXCEPT Parish Meetings 
who must hold a public meeting and approve the AGAR before 31 August. 

Separate changes to allow remote meetings apply to Internal Drainage Boards.

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019-20 Addendum – Coronavirus Emergency Regulation changes35



This page is intentionally left blank

36


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of minutes and matters arising
	Minutes , 22/07/2020 The Charter Trustees of Poole

	5 Charter Trustees 2019-20 Internal Audit Report
	6 Development of Risk Register
	7 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20
	annual_return_addendum




